
 
Camrose Public Library – February 12 2025 Agenda 

Present:  

Regrets:  

1. Approval of the Agenda 

2. Board Feedback 

3. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes of January 15 2025 meeting 

b. Items for Information 

i. Correspondence 

ii. Libraries in the News  

a. Regina Public Library Seeking Increased Budget to Cover Rising 

Costs, Eventual New Downtown Facility 

c. Reports 

i. Director’s Report 

ii. Program Overview to January 31 2025 

iii. Program Report and Library Statistics January 31 2025 

4. Items for Discussion and Decision 

a. PLSB Annual Report 

b. Board Training – Advocacy 

c. LAPP Audit – Funding 

d. March Library Closure – Inventory 

e. New Procedure for Board Meetings and Briefing Note Template 

5. In-Camera Items for Decision 

a. Collection Assistant Grid 

 

Next regular Board meeting: March 12 2025, 5:15pm 



  
Camrose Public Library: January 15, 2025 Minutes 

Present:  Renee Greer (Chair), Alyssa Martin (Director), Naomi Finseth (Vice-Chair), Don 

Simpson (Camrose Council) Joy-Anne Murphy (City Council), Cheryl Dezall, Lucy Ernst, 

Margaret Holliston (Secretary),   

Guest:  Margaret Law 

Regrets: Peter Hamm 

Call to Order: Vice-Chair Naomi Finseth called the meeting to order at 5:05 pm.  By 

Zoom.  Chair Renee Greer joined the meeting at approximately 5:12 pm. 

1. Approval of the Agenda 

Motion 01/25 M/S/C –Margaret Holliston/Lucy Ernst: That the agenda be approved.  

2. Board Feedback:  None. 

3. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes December 18, 2024, meeting: 

Motion 02/25 M/S/C – Cheryl Dezall/Don Simpson: That the minutes for 

December 18, 2024, be approved as amended:  Item 4g, Library Operating 

Hours, second line, insert “remain” between “and” and “open”. 

b. Items for Information: Board members reviewed prior to the meeting. 

c. Reports:  Board members reviewed prior to the meeting. 

4. Items for Discussion and Decision 

a. Organizational Review:  Margaret Law presented the draft Review dated 

January 1, 2025.  The review complements the Plan of Service. It was well-

received and generated good discussion.  Most of the implementation falls to 

the Executive Director, but board can support.  Margaret also pledged her 

support as appropriate and feasible. 

• Entailed a comprehensive consultation process with significant staff input and 

documents review.  Staff are clearly committed to and enthusiastic about the 

library. The board works well with the Director and each other. 

• Space is a major limiting factor: no room for more storage or staff. Contains 

helpful suggestions for re-focusing current resources.  Aging space must also 

be kept in mind, including in terms of OHS concerns that may arise. 

• Provides a more clarified focus on board duties (fewer committees) and is 

equally helpful to the Director in terms of her and other staff responsibilities. 

Good role clarification suggestions for updating job descriptions.   

• Human resources and building related matters thus emerged as priorities for 

at least the first half of 2025. 

• Programming is good; programming staff very enthusiastic; need to link to the 

Plan of Service (consistently clarify/identify related P of S outcomes) stressed. 



  
Camrose Public Library: January 15, 2025 Minutes 

b. Executive Election:  

i. Chair:  Renee Greer acclaimed to continue as Chair. 

ii. Vice-Chair:  Naomi Finseth acclaimed to continue as Vice-Chair. 

iii. Secretary/Treasurer:  Margaret Holliston acclaimed to continue as Secretary, 

noting that the position is now Secretary/Treasurer (see below), and that TAL 

will prepare the Quarterly Financial Reports for presentation to the Board. 

iv. Communications:  The board opted to leave this vacant pending 

implementation of the Organizational Review. 

v. Treasurer:  The board agreed that the Secretary and Treasurer roles would be 

combined into one position (see above). 

vi. Signing Authorities:  Renee Greer and Lucy Ernst remain as signing authorities. 

Alyssa noted that there will be more online banking, and the library is 

exploring banking options. 

Motion 03/25 M/S/C - Don Simpson/Naomi Finseth: To remove Vikki Williams as 

a signing authority. 

Motion 04/25 M/S/C – Joy-Anne Murphy/Lucy Ernst: To add Margaret Holliston 

as a signing authority. 

vii. Personnel Committee:   

Motion 05/25 M/S/C – Margaret Holliston/Naomi Finseth:  To re-appoint Renee 

Greer, Charyl Dezall and Naomi Finseth to the Personnel Committee. 

viii. Policy Committee:  The board agreed not to create a policy committee as 

per the Organizational Review, but review policy as a whole board based on 

Alyssa’s priorities and recommendations/suggested changes. 

ix. Advocacy Committee: The board opted to build advocacy discussions into 

each board meeting.  Members are interested in advocacy training, noting 

that there are three elections in 2025 (federal; two municipal – see below). 

c. Meeting Date: 

Motion 06/25 M/S/C – Joy-Anne Murphy/Lucy Ernst: That the CPL board will meet 

the second Wednesday of the month at 5:15 pm. 

d. 2025 Library Closures: 

Motion 07/25 M/S/C – Margaret Holliston/Joy-Anne Murphy: That the CPL board 

approve the 2025 library closure dates as presented in the board package. 

e. Board Orientation:  Introductory orientation was deemed unnecessary; the 

board would like advocacy training; Alyssa will bring options to the next meeting. 

5. Adjournment: Chair Renee Greer declared the meeting adjourned at 6:55 pm. 

6. Next regular board meeting: February 12, 5:10 pm 



Regina Public Library seeking increased budget to 
cover rising costs, eventual new downtown facility 

By Wayne Mantyka 

Published: February 05, 2025 at 10:50AM EST 

Leaders at the Regina Public Library say they need more money to cover increasing 
operating costs and a future new central location. 

City council will be asked to approve a 4.58 per cent mill rate increase for the Regina Public 
Library (RPL) with the board saying current revenue is not meeting needs. 

“That is equivalent to 0.42 per cent of the city’s mill rate or about 80 cents a month for the 
average homeowner,” RPL board chair Marj Gavigan said. 

RPL says if approved, the increased funding will go toward increased salaries and 
improving cyber security. 

• Council upholds previous decision on central library renewal for Regina 

• ‘Our city deserves this’: Council approves funding for Regina Central Library 

renewal 

• RPL scales back on proposed size of main branch, seeks funding from city 

Gavigan said the average annual increase for RPL has been 2.2 per cent over the past 
decade but adds that this year they find themselves under more financial pressure. 

“And we need to increase our revenue to address that pressure,” Gavigan said. 

The library board will also ask the new city council to affirm a commitment to an eventual 
new central library downtown. That would require an additional 5.5 per cent dedicated 
mill rate increase for five years along with debt financing of $119 million. 

“We are at the front end at this stage where we are hiring consultants, architects, legal 
advisors and things like that to make sure that we can issue an RFP that meets our needs,” 
RPL’s director of finance Curtis Smith said. 

Smith expects that work will take them into 2026, when the design stage will likely begin. 

Currently the plan is to have a new facility for 2030. 

https://www.ctvnews.ca/regina/article/regina-public-library-seeking-increased-budget-to-cover-rising-

costs-eventual-new-downtown-facility/ 

 

https://www.ctvnews.ca/team/wayne-mantyka/
https://www.ctvnews.ca/regina/article/council-upholds-previous-decision-on-central-library-renewal-for-regina/
https://www.ctvnews.ca/regina/article/our-city-deserves-this-council-approves-funding-for-regina-central-library-renewal/
https://www.ctvnews.ca/regina/article/our-city-deserves-this-council-approves-funding-for-regina-central-library-renewal/
https://www.ctvnews.ca/regina/article/rpl-scales-back-on-proposed-size-of-main-branch-seeks-funding-from-city/
https://www.ctvnews.ca/regina/article/regina-public-library-seeking-increased-budget-to-cover-rising-costs-eventual-new-downtown-facility/
https://www.ctvnews.ca/regina/article/regina-public-library-seeking-increased-budget-to-cover-rising-costs-eventual-new-downtown-facility/


 
 

Director’s Report  
February 5 2025 

Alyssa Martin 

 

Organizational Review 

Below is an update on the implementation of the Organizational Review 

recommendations. A staff meeting was held to inform staff of the upcoming 

changes, and to brainstorm how to put them into effect in the least disruptive 

manner possible. 

 

 Contracting TAL (The Alberta Library) 

Our banking platform is now live, and TAL will be able to send EFTs in 

February for our bill payments, moving much of our work to an automated 

system with very few paper cheques, and very little postage. We are still in 

the process of setting up how we will submit timesheets and access 

paystubs. 

 

Creating Executive Assistant Role 

An Executive Assistant has been hired, and will begin in the role at the end 

of February. 

 

New HR Software 

We are in the implementation process with Collage HR to track our HR 

paperwork and staff leave. We will assess the product once it is up and 

running to determine if it will meet our needs. 

 

Service Desk Supervisor 

The Service Desk Supervisor is now in their office and is able to work on 

their off-desk work with fewer interruptions. This is particularly necessary as 

we wait for the Executive Director to start. This has resulted in fewer 

circulation desk hours. 

 

Service Desk Changes 

With the Service Desk Supervisor moving into their new role, the strain on 

the service desk is increasing (as expected). They are working to train the 

public to use the self-checkout as much as viable, to use their online 

account to place holds, renew items and search the catalogue, and to 

get the public to return their items in the front grey bin in preparation for 

the Collection Assistant position. As the public learns to use these tools, 

which is industry standard at this point, the pressure on the Circulation 



 
 

Assistants will lessen, and eventually allow us to give them off-desk time to 

complete their tasks and training. 

 

Public response is mixed. Some are excited to learn we have a self-

checkout, but many think we are trying to eliminate jobs and are resistant 

to using the machine. Staff are working on improved messaging so that 

the public understands that since we cannot hire more staff, we have to 

find ways to adapt to increased usage. 

 

Donations 

We are still waiting to hear from the Fellowship of the Camrose Public 

Library to see if they can take over the Book Sale and to take book 

donations on our behalf. 

 

 

Alberta Government Ethnocultural Grant 
Our submission for the Ethnocultural Grant has been submitted in the hopes of 

extending our newcomer programming. 

 

Vision Credit Grant 
We have submitted an application to Vision Credit to obtain the last pilot bike, 

and to get back up batteries. 



Outreach Program Attendance

Deliveries to Care Facilites 9 69

German Circle Online 4 13

Ukulele Online 4 10

Mind Masters 1 201

18 293

In House Program Attendance

Spanish 4 17

Ukulele 4 41

Fibre Club 3 21

Drum Circle with CMHA 0 0

Climate Café 0 0

Cricut Classes 2 9

Life Skills 101 1 5

Lunch & Learn with FCSS 1 12

Beading Circle with Joelle Skinner 1 12

16 117

Total 34 410

Camrose Public Library                                                                                                                    

Adult Programs                                                                                                                                

January 1 to 31, 2025



Outreach Program Attendance

Read for 15 1 3426

Chuck Maclean Family workshops 1 9

Women's Shelter Family Literacy 0 0

2 3435

In House Program Attendance

Snacks in the Stacks 22 541

Something Cool After School 19 124

Books & Bounces 4 47

Terrific Tales 4 67

Tech Help 9 18

Bed Time Stories 4 64

Crafternoon 3 21

Rainbow Club 0 0

School PD Matinee 1 31

Newcomers Guide to Camrose 3 25

Saturday Story Time 0 0

Weekend Wiggles 0 0

Ghibli Geeks Club 1 2

Environmental Literacy Night for Family Literacy Day 1 14

71 954

Total 73 4389

Camrose Public Library                                                                                                                    

Family Programs                                                                                                                                

January 1 to 31, 2025



Outreach Program Attendance

0 0

In House Program Attendance

0 0

Monthly Total 0 0

Camrose Public Library                                                                                                                    

Childrens Programs                                                                                                                                

January 1 to  31, 2025



Outreach Program Attendance

0 0

In House Program Attendance

Golden Flames Teen D & D 4 53

4 53

Total 4 53

Camrose Public Library                                                                                                                    

Teen Programs                                                                                                                                

January 1 to 31, 2025



Outreach Programs 20 3728

In-house Programs 91 1124

YTD 111 4852

Submitted by Nicole Kyle

3-Feb-25

Camrose Public Library                                                                                                                    

Total Programs                                                                                                                                

January 1 to  31, 2025



213

3426
Camrosians

reported for Read
for 15, giving us the
largest number of

readers in the
Alberta-wide

contest! 

people attended
programs that foster
a sense of community

connection and
belonging.

1142

1 bit of 
awesome feedback:

January 2025
Program and Library Statistics

Submitted by Nicole Kyle
February 3 , 2025

people attended library
programs and special

events designed to
educate and promote a
love of lifelong learning.

A patron said that they
absolutely loved that we

lend showshoes; their
grandkids have used
them every single day

and have had an
absolute blast!







January 2024 Library Statistics

YTD daily visit averages (and hourly based on operational hours in brackets) 
               Mondays: 421 (avg of 47/hr)            Tuesdays: 386 (avg of 43/hr)
               Wednesdays: 366 (avg of 41/hr)       Thursdays: 304 (avg of 34/hr)
               Fridays: 316 (avg of 35/hr)               Saturdays: 220 (avg of 44/hr)
 

Please note: eContent statistics were not available from PRL before report submission deadline

*
* *

*

*



 

 

Decision 

Public Library Service Branch 2024 Annual Report and Survey 
 

Issue: 

The board must approve the PLSB Annual Report and Survey each year to be eligible 

for provincial funding. 

Background: 

Statistics are gathered throughout the year for the purposes of this report, and are used 

to make operational decisions and to advocate for the library. This report is the 

summary of those statistics, and is sent to the provincial government as a requirement 

for our provincial funding, which is our second largest source of funding. 

Considerations: 

If this report and survey is not approved by the board, CPL will be ineligible for the 

annual provincial funding. 

What are the risks? 

CPL will need to cut personnel and operating hours if this report is not submitted by the 

deadline of February 28 2025. 

Options: 

• Approve the report and survey as presented. 

• Suggest changes to rectify information errors and approve the report and survey 

as an e-vote. 

• Do not approve the report and survey, and lose a large portion of our annual 

funding. 

Recommendations: 

Approve the report and survey as presented. 

Proposed Motion: 

“I move to approve the PLSB 2024 Annual Report and Survey as presented.” 











































 

 

Decision 

Board Advocacy Training 
 

Issue: 

It was decided that board orientation would focus on advocacy this year. The board 

needs to choose a training option. 

Background: 

Board orientation usually consist of training from PLSB or Parkland about how public 

libraries are governed, structured and funded in Alberta. As all of our board are 

returning members, it was decided that we would focus our orientation on advocacy 

this year as we are facing two municipal elections and a federal election. The Director 

was instructed to find advocacy training options. 

Considerations: 

As laid out in the organizational review, CPL is understaffed and needs a new building 

that will meet our organization and community’s needs. Funds are hard to come by, 

and advocacy during an election year is vital. An advocacy plan will need to be put 

forth by the end of Spring at the latest. The CPL Board will need to weigh budgetary 

constraints against how much guidance they desire to create an advocacy plan.  

What are the risks? 

An advocacy plan could be created without advocacy training, but it may lack 

guidance and efficacy. Alternatively, without having prior experience with the offered 

training, the training may cost more time or funds than the board may find useful. A 

decision should be made in order to move forward with an advocacy plan. 

Options: 

• Parkland Regional Library System offered live, online virtual training for directors 

and their boards during the middle of the work day this week. When asked if they 

would present the training to our board at a time that suits us, their response was 

that a recording would be available. They would not provide a description of the 

training beyond “advocacy” in advance of the training, so the contents are 

unclear. This option is free as we are a part of PRLS, but we cannot ask questions 

and it won’t be tailored to our community. 

• Sue Heuman from Focus Communications was recommended by Yellowhead 

Regional Library, as she provided custom advocacy training for their board. She 

would do the same for Camrose and run a 2 hour workshop for the board. The 

quote was sent to the board. This would be an in-depth and tailored workshop, 

specific to Camrose, and the most likely to help us craft a strong advocacy plan, 

but the quote is well out of the board training budget, and would require pulling 

from the PD Reserves, and possibly allocating the board’s annual training budget 

line to this instead of attending Stronger Together. 



 

 

• There are various toolkits and guides online, but none are tailored for Albertan 

libraries, and few were released within the last 3 years. Most of these are free, but 

of limited helpfulness. 

Recommendations: 

If the board feels the price tag is worth the advocacy training, I would suggest Sue 

Heuman’s customized training, given our acute need for more staff and a new building.  

Proposed Motion: 

“I move we pull up to $2500 from the PD Reserve for the purposes of contracting Focus 

Communications to run an advocacy workshop.” 



 

 

Discussion – LAPP Audit 
 

Issue: 

CPL must conduct an audit for our Local Authorities Pension Plan every 3 years. LAPP 

changed their requirements, and this will now cost double what it did a few years ago. 

This is not in the budget. 

Background: 

Grant Thornton conducts our annual financial review and our tri-annual LAPP audit. This 

year the LAPP audit rate doubled, and it is not in the budget. The annual financial 

review will be $500 more than was budgeted for. It may be worth our time to 

investigate alternative options. We can choose whomever we want for the LAPP Audit, 

but section 6 of the Libraries Act requires library boards to “have a person who is not a 

member of the board and whose qualifications are satisfactory to the council of the 

municipality review the financial records each calendar year and prepare a financial 

report in a form satisfactory to the council”. Mr. Bouck, the General Manager at the City 

of Camrose, suggested our council rep speak to what is considered satisfactory to 

council. 

Considerations: 

There is limited time to find someone else to conduct these services. The Annual 

Financial Review is needed to apply for our provincial funding, and should be 

presented to the board in our April board Meeting to ensure enough time for the grant 

application. The LAPP Audit is due by June 30. 

CPL is undergoing a lot of change at the moment, staff time is limited, and stability with 

our accounting firm would be appreciated. However, funds are limited and our 

accountants may no longer be financially sustainable. 

What are the risks? 

By changing providers, we may save CPL thousands of dollars going forward, but put 

additional stress on a team that is already stretched. By continuing to use our current 

providers, we will need to use funds from the operating reserve. 

Options: 

• Choose to look into a new firm for the LAPP Audit, but retain our accountants for 

the annual financial review. 

• Keep our current accountants for both the LAPP Audit and Annual Financial 

review, and use reserve funds to cover it. 

• Look into a new firm (or firms) for the LAPP Audit and Annual Financial Review. 

Recommendations: 

If CPL were not in the midst of broad organizational change, I would suggest looking 

into new firms for both the Audit and Review to compare prices. Given the staff turn-



 

 

over and changes to operations, I suggest keeping our current provider for 2025, pulling 

funds from the reserves, and seeking other options in 2026. 

Proposed Motion: 

“I motion to pull up to $4500 from the Operation Reserve to cover the 2025 LAPP Audit 

expenses.” 



 

 

Decision 

Library Closure to Conduct Inventory 
 

Issue: 

Inventory of the library collection should be conducted every second year. In the past 

PRLS did all of the inventory for us. This year, they are only willing to send half the staff 

needed, and require CPL staff to make up the other half. This leaves CPL in the position 

of being unable to staff the desks and do inventory. 

Background: 

In past years, PRLS has brought enough staff to conduct inventory while the library 

remains open and handles normal operations. This year, when requested to come and 

conduct inventory, CPL was told “We now reserve staff time for assisting member libraries 

without a full staffing complement or full-time operational hours with the completion of the 

inventory process.” I responded that our organizational review identified that we were 

deeply understaffed, that we pay the same per capita as the other libraries, and that 

we expect the same services to be made available to us. A compromise was offered, 

where PRLS offered to send out 4 people for an eight person job, and would need CPL 

to supply 4 staff for a full day of work. This either requires CPL to close for a day to 

provide the staff, or to use up our PD and staff meeting hours to conduct inventory. This 

removal of service was not relayed to member libraries as we were making our budget. 

Considerations: 

CPL requires board approval for library closures for non-emergency measures. 

What are the risks? 

Inventory is necessary to keep the collection well maintained, and to ensure our 

catalogue works. If we stay open for the public, CPL will need to pay extra staff to 

come in for inventory, using up our hours allocated for staff meetings, community 

events and professional development. If we close the library to conduct PD, the 

community loses a day of service, and a few of my team get a day to catch up on 

desk work, engage in PD, and inventory gets done. 

Options: 

• Approve a day of library closure to conduct inventory. 

• Reduce hours for staff meetings or community events to cover the staff needed 

for inventory. 

Recommendations: 

Close the library for a day to conduct inventory with PRLS assistance. 

Proposed Motion: 

“I move to permit the Director to choose a day to close the library in 2025 for the 

purposes of conducting inventory.” 



 

 

Decision  

New Procedures for Board Meetings and the Introduction of Briefing 

Notes 
 

Issue: 

One of the suggestions from the Organizational Review was to implement procedures 

for Board Meetings and briefing notes to make board work more efficient. 

Background: 

CPL does not have recorded procedures and has not implemented briefing notes prior 

to this recommendation. 

Considerations: 

The Board and staff will have less guidance on how to run a meeting and disseminate 

information, increasing the likelihood of mistakes or missed information. 

What are the risks? 

This is not urgent, but would provide some clarity to our processes and better inform the 

board before meetings of discussion and decision topics. 

Options: 

• Adopt the procedures for board meetings and briefing notes as written. 

• Suggest alterations to either document or request more information. 

• Reject the suggestion and continue as the board currently operates. 

Recommendations: 

The Director recommends implementing a version of briefing notes and board meeting 

procedures. 

Proposed Motion: 

“I move that the board adopts the board meeting procedures and briefing notes as 

presented.” 



 

 

For Discussion/Decision  

Topic 
 

Issue: 

Why is this matter being brought to the board? 

Background: 

Explain any history that is helpful for decision making? 

Considerations: 

What happens if this decision is not made? 

What are the risks? 

How urgent is it? Who does it affect? Pros and cons. 

Options: 

If there are options for this decision, list them here. 

Recommendations: 

If there are options, which is the preferred one, and why. 

Proposed Motion: 

If it is a decision, draft the motion so that the trustees can see it in writing. It can be 

changed at the meeting if necessary. 



 

 

Procedure for Board Meetings 
 

Call to order 

a. Chair calls the meeting to order 

b. Any new members or guests are introduced 

c. Land Acknowledgement  

“The Camrose Public Library (CPL) is an organization located on Treaty 6 territory, 

the traditional lands of the Indigenous and the Métis People. For as long as the 

sun shines, the rivers flow, and the grass grows, this land will be recognized as 

Treaty 6 Territory.” 

 

Adoption of Agenda 

a. Chair asks if there are any additions to the agenda 

b. Chair declares the agenda adopted (no motion needed) 

 

Adoption of the Minutes 

a. Chair asks if there are any corrections to the minutes 

b. Chair declares the minutes adopted (no motion needed) 

 

Items for Decision 

a. Each item in this section requires a motion but it does not need to be seconded 

b. Each item should have a briefing note providing the information that the trustees 

need to make a decision 

c. A draft motion should be part of each briefing note 

d. The motion requires a vote 

e. Board members may ask to have their vote recorded 

 

Items for Discussion 

a. The items in this section do not require a motion 

b. This is for discussion of items where the Library Director or a Board Committee 

wishes further input from the Board 

c. Each item requires a briefing note 

d. Items in this section often result in an action 

 

Items for Information 

a. This section includes reports from the Chair, the Library Director, financial reports, 

committee reports and reports from the regional system 

b. These reports should be in writing 

c. It is assumed that everyone has read these reports in advance, so there is no 

verbal report unless there are questions. 



 

 

Trustees Only Session 

a. This allows the trustees to talk without the Library Director or any guests present. 

No motions can be made at this time. 

b. It may not be used at every meeting, but it remains on the agenda. 

 

Meeting Adjournment 

a. The chair declares the meeting adjourned 

b. No motion is necessary 

 


